
Adopted Minutes
Development Review Committee

May 26, 2004

The meeting was called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Emil Pierson.

Staff Members Present:  Richard J. Heap, Engineering/Public Works Director; Emil Pierson,
Planning Director; David A. Oyler, City Manager; S. Junior Baker, City Attorney; Richard
Nielson, Assistant Public Works Director; Michael Hendrickson, Electric Lead Lineman; Marvin
Banks, Public Works Superintendent; Keith Broadhead, Public Works Inspector; Dee
Rosenbaum, Public Safety Director; Ryan Baum, Public Works Inspector; Shawn Beecher, GIS
Specialists; and Connie Swain, Deputy Recorder.

Citizens Present: Ken Fakler, Auto Zone, Karen Fakler, Auto Zone, John D. Smiley, Quail
Hollow, Ernie Thornton, LEI Engineers/Spanish Fields, Kelly Porter, April Porter, Ben Forsky,
and Brook McDonald.

Minutes

Mr. Baker made a motion to approve the Development and Review Committee meeting minutes
of April 21, 2004 with changes as noted.  Mr.  Nielson seconded, and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote.

Mr.  Baker made a motion to approve the Development and Review Committee meeting minutes
of May 12, 2004  with changes as noted.  Mr.  Nielson seconded, and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote.

10:10 a.m. - Ryan Baum arrived

Wapiti Cove Rezone

Mr. Pierson said the applicant, Dale Houghton, is requesting to rezone the property at 1630 South
1400 East from R-R to R-1-12.  The request meets the General Plan.  The surrounding properties
are zones R-1-12, R-R, and R-1-9.  The Rezone is being separate from the Preliminary Plat to
reduce confusion. 

Mr. Nielson asked if it creates a spot zone.

Mr. Pierson said it carves away and no spot zone will be created.

Mr. Baker asked if a straight up subdivision will be proposed due to the size of the property.

Mr. Pierson confirmed.



Mr. Baker made a motion to recommend approval of the Wapiti Cove Rezone with the following
finding(s):

1. The property is surrounded by R-1-12 zones, an R-R zone, and a small R-1-9 zone
and is consistent with the neighborhood.

Mr. Pierson seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.

10:15 a.m. - Richard Heap arrived

Spanish Vista Final Plat A

Mr. Pierson said the Spanish Vista Final Plat A is zoned R-1-9 and is located at 1800 East 1000
South.  Mr. Pierson reviewed the conditions of the preliminary plat. 

Mr. Adams said the storm drain in ready to be bonded for.

Mr. Baker asked if the easements are recorded.

Mr. Adams said they are held until money is received and then easements will be recorded.

Mr. Oyler asked if the utility restriction is still in place.

Mr. Pierson confirmed.

Mr. Nielson said the storm drain on the church property is included in Plat B.

Mr. Oyler asked the status of the irrigation ditch.

Mr. Adams said the design for the irrigation ditch is ready if needed.  They are waiting for one
property owner who is out of state to approve the abandonment of the ditch.  They are prepared
to either abandon or pipe the ditch.  The piping or the abandonment of the ditch will be included
in Plat B.

Mr. Pierson continued reviewing the preliminary plat conditions.

Mr. Nielson reviewed the changes proposed for the 1700 East and Canyon Road intersection to
improve traffic vision.  

Mr. Heap asked if the signatures are not received on the ditch abandonment will be needed. 

Mr. Hansen said they could dig a temporary ditch until the signatures are all received.

Mr. Baker pointed out the section of the ditch on the property line of Plat A.

Mr. Adams said if the signatures are not received they will bond for the ditch prior to recording
the plat.



Mr. Adams said Del Robbins signed a letter accepting the easement on his property.

Mr. Hendrickson said electric services will need to be brought to the development off of Canyon
Road at approximately 2000 East.

Mr. Nielson made a motion to approve the Spanish Vista Final Plat A with the following
conditions:

1. Meet all of the Construction and Development Standards,
2. Bond for the ditch piping or provide letters of abandonment,
3. Receive approval of the electrical design from Jeff Foster of the Electric

Department,
4. Meet all previous conditions applicable to this phase of the development.

Mr. Pierson seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Adams said they are hesitant to bond for the storm drain until the storm drain reimbursement
agreement is signed.  He requested that the development agreement approval be placed on the
city council agenda as soon as possible.

Mr. Pierson said as long as the bond is posted by June 17 the item can be on the agenda.

Spanish Vista Final Plat B 

Mr. Pierson said Spanish Vista Final Plat B is the same as Plat A.

Mr. Nielson said the lot for the storm drain was not included on the plat.

Mr. Hansen said the correction has been made and the storm drain lot has been added to the plat
and it is shown as a non-buildable lot.

Mr. Baker said the lot needs to be recorded as a storm drain lot.

Mr. Nielson said a storm drain easement is needed.

Mr. Pierson made a motion to approve the Spanish Vista Final Plat B with the following
conditions:

1. Add wording, under the direction of the Engineering Department and Legal
Department, to the final plat for recording regarding the detention basin.

Mr. Oyler seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Sunny Ridge Preliminary Plat A

Mr. Simpson said Sunny Ridge Preliminary Plat A consists of 218 lots, however, they will only
be requesting 183 hookups.  They will also be requesting an amendment to the Growth
Boundary.  The annexation agreement also includes a requirement to put in a road.



Mr. Baker asked Mr. Pierson if 183 lots were approved based on the available sewer capacity.

Mr. Pierson confirmed.

Mr. Heap asked concerning the trail along the railroad tracks.

Mr. Simpson said the trail system will be on Woodspring’s property to eliminate negotiations
with the railroad.

Mr. Pierson said the trail will meet the city standards.

Mr. Baker said Woodspring’s portion of the bridge cost will need to be determined.

Mr. Nielson asked who will do the traffic study.

Mr. Oyler said the city will need to acquire a traffic study and the cost for the study will be
included in the bridge costs.

Mr. Pierson said the property is zoned R-1-12 and the development will be a straight up
subdivision.

Mr. Simpson said a fence along the trail system and the bridge costs were also part of the
annexation agreement.  He is also in the process of receiving the approval for the ditch
abandonment and the details are being worked out.

Chief Rosenbaum asked if there will be sidewalks to the school.

Mr. Pierson reviewed the sidewalk design and pointed out the need for a school crossing guard.

Mr. Nielson is concerned with the detention basin consisting of a series of three basins. 
According of contours of the land there is 17 feet of fall and will be in residents back yards.  He
is concerned with accessing the basin through backyards.  He said he would like the basin to be
relocated and to decrease the grade.  

Mr. Simpson said the problem with relocating the detention basin is the sewer lift.

Mr. Oyler suggested using one of the lots as a detention basin.  The possible design changes were
discussed.

Mr. Simpson said using a lot for the detention basin and including a trail to the basin is a good
solution to the problem.

Mr. Nielson said another concern he had is the road to the cut bridge.  There will be a trail
eventually on the south side of the road and he suggested just installing curb and gutter along the
road.



Mr. Oyler asked who will install the trail and when will it go in.  He said Woodsprings’s share of
the trail could be determined.

Mr. Pierson said the city should put in the trail from the bridge to the southeast.  Woodspring is
already putting in half plus ten feet of the road to the cut bridge.

11:05 a.m. - Mr.  Nielson left the meeting

Mr. Baker said the question is if the property is still owned by the County.

Mr. Beecher said it is shown as empty space.

The developer will investigate and find the property owner of the area north of the cut bridge.

Mr. Pierson made a motion to approve the Sunny Ridge Preliminary Plat A with the following
conditions:

1. Construct a masonry wall along 400 North matching the wall at Valley Crest,
including 2-inch caliper trees every 30 feet, tree grates, sprinkler system, and
stamped concrete,

2. Relocate the detention basin onto lot 188,
3. Construct a trail, in accordance with the city trail standards, to lot 188 with access

onto the street,
4. Meet all of the Construction and Development Standards,
5. Receive approval of the electrical design from Jeff Foster of the Electric

Department,
6. Receive the ditch piping sign-off from the irrigation company,
7. Meet all of the zoning requirements for the R-1-12 Zone,
8. Meet all of the conditions of the Annexation Agreement,
9. The north-south collector road is to be included as part of the first phase,
10. Find the property owner for the triangular piece north of the cut bridge, 
11. Amend the preliminary plat to show the installation of half of the road plus ten

feet of the road to the bridge, to be included in the first phase of the development, 
12. Clear up the right-of-way lines for the cut bridge road.

Mr. Baker seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.

Other Business

Mr. Banks reported information concerning individuals living in the old theater on Main Street. 

Mr. Banks said individuals living in the old theater is a fire hazard and the use is not permitted.  

Mr. Pierson said the zoning allows residents above the first floor and none on the first floor.

Mr. Banks is concerned in the case of a fire and he has health concerns.  He said if there were a
fire in the building, fire rescue would not be aware of anyone in the building after hours.



Mr. Oyler suggesting finding out who owns the building and find out the situation is.  He asked
Mr. Pierson to follow up on the report.

Mr. Banks said the same situation is occurring at the John Tescher property on Arrowhead Road. 
A ply wood shack has been built and is not hooked to water, sewer, or electric.

Mr. Pierson said Carl Johnston has already talked to the people and it is being worked out.  Mr.
Pierson and Carl Johnston have a meeting scheduled today to discuss the problem.  He will
follow up on this report also. 

Adjournment

Mr. Baker made a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Pierson seconded, the motion passed unanimously,
and the meeting adjourned at 11:40 p.m.


